METROPOLITAN LYNCHBURG -MOORE COUNTY WATER AND SEWER DEPARTMENT

Lynchburg, Tennessee
June 30, 2020



INTRODUCTORY SECTION

CONTENTS

INTRODUCTORY SECTION	
Officials	4
FINANCIAL SECTION	
Independent Auditor's ReportFinancial Statements:	6
Statement of Net Position	9
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position	10
Statement of Cash Flows	11
Notes to Financial Statements	12
Supplementary Information:	
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance	21
Other Miscellaneous Schedules:	
Schedule of Income - Budget and Actual	22
Schedule of Operating Expenses - Budget and Actual	23
Schedule of Revenue Bond Principal and Interest Requirements	25
Schedule of Changes in Long-term Debt by Individual Issue	26
Schedule of Water Loss –AWWA Reporting Worksheet	27
Schedule of Rates and Number of Customers	29
INTERNAL CONTROL AND COMPLIANCE SECTION	
Independent Auditor's Report on:	
Internal Control over Financial Reporting and On Compliance and Other Matters	
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with	
Government Auditing Standards	30
Schedule of Disposition of Prior Year Findings	32
Schedule of Findings	33
Management's Corrective Action Plan	34
THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY O	

OFFICIALS

METROPOLITAN LYNCHBURG - MOORE COUNTY WATER AND SEWER DEPARTMENT

June 30, 2020

UTILITY BOARD

Keith Moses - Vice Chair (Acting Chairperson)

Gerald Burnett

Sunny Rae Moorehead

Will Shavers

OTHER OFFICIALS

Russell Sells - Manager

Brooke Fanning - Office Manager

FINANCIAL SECTION



514 Elm Street, P. O. Box 745 Shelbyville, Tennessee 37162

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Members of Utility Board Metropolitan Lynchburg - Moore County Water and Sewer Department Lynchburg, Tennessee

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Metropolitan Lynchburg-Moore County Water and Sewer Department of Metropolitan Lynchburg, Moore County, Tennessee, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Metropolitan Lynchburg-Moore County Water and Sewer Department of Metropolitan Lynchburg, Moore County, Tennessee, as of June 30, 2020, and the changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Management has omitted management's discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section, schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance, and other miscellaneous schedules, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements.

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

The introductory section and the other miscellaneous schedules have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note A, the financial statements present only the Metropolitan Lynchburg - Moore County Water and Sewer Department and do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of Metropolitan Lynchburg - Moore County, Tennessee, the changes in its financial position, or, where applicable, its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

Winnett Association, PLLC

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 23, 2021, on our consideration of Metropolitan Lynchburg-Moore County Water and Sewer Department's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Metropolitan Lynchburg-Moore County Water and Sewer Department's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

June 23, 2021

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

METROPOLITAN LYNCHBURG - MOORE COUNTY WATER AND SEWER DEPARTMENT

Year ended June 30, 2020

?A.	SSETS.		
UTILITY PLANT:			
Utility plant in service - Notes B(2) and C Less accumulated depreciation and amortization	S 20,521,647 (7,088,754)		
less accumulated depreciation and amortization	13,432,893		
Construction in progress	61,505	\$	13,494,398
CURRENT ASSETS:	914,221		
Cash and cash equivalents - including restricted cash of \$63,756 - Note D	914,221		
Certificate of deposit	100,499		
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for			
uncollectible accounts of \$7,316 - Notes B(3) and I	220,518		
Other accounts receivable	1,517		
Unbilled water and sewer charges	98,190 74,787		
Inventories - Note B(4) Prepaid expenses	56,505		
Trepaid expenses	TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS		1,466,237
OTHER ASSETS:	TOTAL COMMENT MODELS		1,100,207
Utility deposits) 	520
	TOTAL ASSETS	\$	14,961,155
<u>LIABILITIES A</u>	ND NET POSITION		
CURRENT LIABILITIES:	ф 202.022		
Current maturities of long-term debt Accounts payable	\$ 283,823 79,212		
Accrued wages, payroll taxes, and withholdings	12,561		
Accrued interest	14,937		
Accrued vacation pay	25,243		
Customer advances	4,766		
Customer deposits - Note I	27,789		
	TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES	\$	448,331
LONG-TERM DEBT: Note E			
Revenue bonds	5,165,903		
Notes payable	1,418,960		
Less current portion	(283,823)		
	NET LONG-TERM DEBT		6,301,040
	TOTAL LIABILITIES		6,749,371
NET POSITION:			
Net investment in capital assets	6,909,535		
Restricted for asset maintenance	63,756		
Unrestricted	1,238,493		0 211 704
	TOTAL NET POSITION	8=	8,211,784
ТОТ	AL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION	\$	14,961,155

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION METROPOLITAN LYNCHBURG - MOORE COUNTY WATER AND SEWER DEPARTMENT

Year ended June 30, 2020

OPERATING REVENUES: - Note E			
Water sales	\$ 2,104,8	375	
Sewer service charges	401,		
Penalties	17,5		
Service fees	20,2	242	
Serveline insurance	7,2	386	
Sanitation revenue	7,2	200	
Tap connection fees	26,0	576	
Pre-treatment income	9,9	952	
Credit card income	5,5	962	
Miscellaneous	3,9	934	
Uncollectible accounts	(4,:	534)	
	TOTAL OPERATING REVENU	JES \$	2,600,779
OPERATING EXPENSES:			
General and administrative	423,	906	
Water operating expenses	1,158,	907	
Sewer operating expenses	473,		
Utility maintenance	357,	686	
•	TOTAL OPERATING EXPEN	SES	2,414,260_
	OPERATING INCO)ME	186,519
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):			
Interest income	1,	834	
Interest expense	(174,	452)	
Bond issuance costs	(65,	245)	
Gain on retirement of fixed assets	11,	718	
TOTAL NONOPE	ERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES),	NET	(226,145)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CONTR	IBUTIONS, GRANTS, AND TRANS	FERS	(39,626)
CONTRIBUTIONS, GRANTS, AND TRANSFEI	RS:		
Tap fees in excess of cost			18,324
Grants			61,960
Contributions			2,307
	CHANGE IN NET POSIT	ION	42,965
TOTAL NE	T POSITION - BEGINNING (RESTA	TED)	8,168,819
	TOTAL NET POSITION- END	ing <u>\$</u>	8,211,784

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

METROPOLITAN LYNCHBURG - MOORE COUNTY WATER AND SEWER DEPARTMENT

Year ended June 30, 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:				
Receipts from customers, including other funds	\$	2,592,402		
Payments to suppliers		(953,854)		
Payments to or on behalf of employees	7	(918,102)		
NET CASH	PROVIDED BY	OPERATIONS	\$	720,446
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING	ACTIVITIES:			æ
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACT	IVITIES:			
Acquisition of capital assets		(359,678)		
Proceeds from sale of asset		11,718		
Proceeds from borrowings		3,633,658		
Bond issuance costs		(65,245)		
Borrowings repaid		(3,642,722)		
Contributions, grants, and transfers in aid of construction		57,134		
Interest paid		(169,757)		
NET CASH USED BY CAPITAL AND RELAT	ΓED FINANCIN	G ACTIVITIES		(534,892)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:				
Investment in certificate of deposit		(100,499)		
Interest income	5.	1,834		(2.2. 4.4.2)
NET CASH USED	BY INVESTIN	G ACTIVITIES	-	(98,665)
INCREASE IN CASI	H AND CASH E	QUIVALENTS		86,889
				827,332
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALEN		ING OF YEAR	-	021,332
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALEN CASH AND CASH EQUI	TS AT BEGINN		\$	914,221
•	TS AT BEGINN		\$	
CASH AND CASH EQUI	TS AT BEGINN		\$	
CASH AND CASH EQUI	TS AT BEGINN		\$	
CASH AND CASH EQUIRECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:	TS AT BEGINN IVALENTS AT	END OF YEAR	\$	
CASH AND CASH EQUIRECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES: Operating income	TS AT BEGINN IVALENTS AT	186,519	\$	
CASH AND CASH EQUIRECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES: Operating income Depreciation and amortization	TS AT BEGINN IVALENTS AT	186,519	\$	
CASH AND CASH EQUIRECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES: Operating income Depreciation and amortization Changes in operating assets and liabilities:	TS AT BEGINN IVALENTS AT	186,519 603,684	\$	
CASH AND CASH EQUIPMENT CONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES: Operating income Depreciation and amortization Changes in operating assets and liabilities: Amounts receivable	TS AT BEGINN IVALENTS AT	186,519 603,684 (19,911)	<u>\$</u>	
CASH AND CASH EQUIPMENT CONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES: Operating income Depreciation and amortization Changes in operating assets and liabilities: Amounts receivable Inventories	TS AT BEGINN IVALENTS AT	186,519 603,684 (19,911) (4,337) 4,251 (47,537)	\$	
CASH AND CASH EQUIRECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES: Operating income Depreciation and amortization Changes in operating assets and liabilities: Amounts receivable Inventories Accrued revenue	TS AT BEGINN IVALENTS AT	186,519 603,684 (19,911) (4,337) 4,251	<u>\$</u>	
CASH AND CASH EQUIPMENT CONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES: Operating income Depreciation and amortization Changes in operating assets and liabilities: Amounts receivable Inventories Accrued revenue Other assets	TS AT BEGINN IVALENTS AT	186,519 603,684 (19,911) (4,337) 4,251 (47,537)	<u>\$</u>	
CASH AND CASH EQUIPMENT CONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES: Operating income Depreciation and amortization Changes in operating assets and liabilities: Amounts receivable Inventories Accrued revenue Other assets Accounts payable	TS AT BEGINN IVALENTS AT	186,519 603,684 (19,911) (4,337) 4,251 (47,537) (995)	<u>\$</u>	
CASH AND CASH EQUIPMENT CASH AND CASH EQUIPMENT CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES: Operating income Depreciation and amortization Changes in operating assets and liabilities: Amounts receivable Inventories Accrued revenue Other assets Accounts payable Accrued wages and payroll taxes	TS AT BEGINN IVALENTS AT	186,519 603,684 (19,911) (4,337) 4,251 (47,537) (995) 2,338	\$	

SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES THAT DID NOT RESULT IN CASH PAYMENTS \$

Purchase of capital assets on account-net of prior year's amount

7,481

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

METROPOLITAN LYNCHBURG - MOORE COUNTY WATER AND SEWER DEPARTMENT

June 30, 2020

NOTE A - GENERAL

These financial statements include the accounts of Metropolitan Lynchburg - Moore County Water and Sewer Department (the Department). The Department is a proprietary fund of Metropolitan Lynchburg - Moore County, Tennessee (the Primary Government) and is governed by the Metropolitan Council (the Council) and a Utility Board composed of members of the Council. The Department does not represent a legal entity separate and apart from the Primary Government.

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the Department conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to enterprise funds. The following is a summary of significant policies:

(1) Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

These financial statements have been prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

(2) Utility Plant and Depreciation

Utility plant in service is reported at cost and includes improvements, with a cost in excess of \$3,000, that significantly add to utility plant or extend useful lives. Cost of maintenance and repairs are charged to expense, as are tap connection costs.

Depreciation is calculated by the straight-line method to allocate the cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives using guidelines set forth by the Utility Review Board. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Structures	20-50 years
Utility plant other than structures and equipment	25-50 years
Equipment	5-10 years

(3) Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts

The Department provides an allowance for uncollectible accounts equal to estimated losses that will be incurred in collection of all receivables. The estimated losses are based on historical collection experience and a review of the current status of the outstanding receivables.

(4) Inventories

Inventories are stated at cost, first-in, first-out method.

METROPOLITAN LYNCHBURG - MOORE COUNTY WATER AND SEWER DEPARTMENT

June 30, 2020

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(5) Compensated Absences

The costs of vacation pay granted to employees are recorded as expenditures when earned.

(6) Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Department considers all highly liquid investments (including restricted assets) purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

(7) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

- (8) Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Department are charges to customers for sales and services. The Department also recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the system. Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative and maintenance expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.
- (9) As a general rule, when both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Department's policy to consider restricted net position to have been depleted before unrestricted net position is applied.
- (10) Bond premiums are amortized over the life of the debt using the effective interest method.

METROPOLITAN LYNCHBURG - MOORE COUNTY WATER AND SEWER DEPARTMENT

June 30, 2020

NOTE C - UTILIT	PLANT ADDITIONS	AND RETIREMENTS
-----------------	-----------------	-----------------

NOTE C CHENT TERM				
	Balance June 30, 2019	Additions & Reclassifications	Retirements & Reclassifications	Balance June 30, 2020
Capital assets not being depreciated or amortized:				
Land and land rights	\$ 92,459			\$ 92,459
Construction in progress	55,846	\$ 369,835	\$ 364,176	61,505
Total capital assets not bein	g			
depreciated or amortized	148,305	369,835	364,176	153,964
Other capital assets:				
General	336,248	112,581	77,724	371,105
Water	14,229,544	29,976	28,989	14,230,531
Sewer	5,119,189	59,782	3,090	5,175,881
Maintenance	206,563	153,344	9,335	350,572
Acquisition adjustment	301,099	: : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : :		301,099
1	20,192,643	355,683	119,138	20,429,188
Less accumulated depreciat	ion/amortization for	:		
General	223,389	22,755	77,724	168,420
Water	5,220,481	423,532	19,926	5,624,087
Sewer	834,588	120,144	3,090	951,642
Maintenance	141,476	22,198	9,253	154,421
Acquisition adjustment	175,129	15,055	<u>=</u>	190,184
Total accumulated				
depreciation/amortization	6,595,063	603,684	109,993	7,088,754
Other capital assets, net	13,597,580	(248,001)	9,145	13,340,434
Capital assets, net	\$ 13,745,885	<u>\$ 121,834</u>	\$ 373,321	\$ 13,494,398

NOTE D - CASH AND RESTRICTED FUNDS

The following is a summary of cash and restricted funds at June 30, 2020:

	Cash	Equivalents	Certificate of Deposit
Cash for general use:	\$	850,465	\$ 100,499
Restricted for asset maintenance		63.756	- Y -
	\$	914,221	<u>\$ 100,499</u>

The Department has also designated \$707,714 to be used to fund capital asset replacements.

METROPOLITAN LYNCHBURG - MOORE COUNTY WATER AND SEWER DEPARTMENT

June 30, 2020

NOTE D - CASH AND RESTRICTED FUNDS (Continued)

Legal Provisions: All deposits with financial institutions must be secured by one of two methods depending on whether the financial institution participates in the bank collateral pool administered by the state treasurer. Participating banks determine the aggregate balance of their public funds accounts for the State of Tennessee and its political subdivisions. The amount of collateral required to secure these public deposits must equal at least 105 percent of the average daily balance of public deposits held. Collateral securities required to be pledged by the participating banks to protect their public fund accounts are pledged to the state treasurer on behalf of the bank collateral pool. The securities pledged to protect these accounts are pledged in the aggregate rather than against each account. The members of the pool may be required by agreement to pay an assessment to cover any deficiency. Under this additional assessment agreement, public fund accounts covered by the pool are considered to be insured for purposes of credit risk disclosure. For deposits with financial institutions that do not participate in the bank collateral pool, state statutes require that all deposits be collateralized with collateral whose market value is equal to 105 percent of the uninsured amount of the deposits. The collateral must be placed by the depository bank in an escrow account in a second bank for the benefit of the Department.

Types of Investments Authorized: State statutes authorize the entity to make direct investments in bonds, notes, or treasury bills of the U.S. government and obligations guaranteed by the U.S. government or any of its agencies; bonds of any state or political subdivision rated A or higher by any nationally recognized rating service; the metropolitan government's own legally issued bonds or notes; the State Treasurer's Investment Pool; and repurchase agreements. The entity has no policy that would further limit its investments.

NOTE E - REVENUE BONDS

A summary of revenue bond transactions for the year ended June 30, 2020, includes the following:

	Revenue bonds
Balance - beginning of year	\$ 5,214,888
Additions	3,422,124
Reductions	(3,471,109)
Balance - end of year	\$ 5,165,903

Details of water and sewer revenue bonds are as follows:

Series 2014 Sewer Revenue and Tax Bonds, 2.250% payable \$4,696 per month
Including principal and interest with final maturity in 2054
\$1,344,169

Series 2014 Sewer Revenue and Tax Bonds, 2.250% payable \$1,586 per month Including principal and interest with final maturity in 2055 457,674

METROPOLITAN LYNCHBURG - MOORE COUNTY WATER AND SEWER DEPARTMENT

June 30, 2020

NOTE E - REVENUE BONDS (Continued)

Series 2019 Water Revenue and Tax Refunding Bonds, with interest rates of 1.6%, 3.0% and 2.875%, and final maturity in 2044

3,237,000

Unamortized premium

\$5,038,843 127,060

\$5,165,903

The bonds are payable from and secured primarily by a pledge of the net revenues of the Department; in the event such revenues are insufficient, the bonds are further secured by the taxing power of the Metropolitan Government.

The annual requirements to amortize principal and interest for all revenue bonds as of June 30, 2020, are as follows:

<u>Year</u>	Principal	<u>Interest</u>
2021	\$ 139,204	\$ 133,583
2022	141,004	131,119
2023	143,822	128,621
2024	147,660	124,573
2025	152,516	120,417
2026-2030	828,117	535,237
2031-2035	946,637	411,627
2036-2040	992,074	275,559
2041-2045	913,773	133,687
2046-2050	323,123	53,797
2051-2055	310,913	15,720
	<u>\$5,038,843</u>	\$2,063,940

The proceeds from the \$3,292,000 in Series 2019 Water Revenue and Tax Refunding Bonds were used to refund \$3,345,300 of outstanding 1997, 2001, 2006, and 2008 Series Water Revenue and Tax Bonds, which had interest rates ranging from 4.125% to 4.875%. The net proceeds of \$3,422,124 (including a \$130,124 premium and after payment of \$65,245 in underwriting fees and other issuance costs) were used to pay the outstanding principal and interest of the refunded bonds.

As a result of the refunding, the Department reduced its debt service through June 30, 2047, by \$853,671 and obtained an economic gain of \$597,701.

Under provisions of the bond agreements, the Department is required to establish and maintain various funds as follows:

(a) Revenue Fund

All revenues are to be deposited in this fund and shall be disbursed for the establishment of the other required funds.

METROPOLITAN LYNCHBURG - MOORE COUNTY WATER AND SEWER DEPARTMENT

June 30, 2020

NOTE E - REVENUE BONDS (Continued)

(b) Operation and Maintenance Fund

The money transferred from the revenue fund is to be deposited to this fund for payment of current expenses. The maximum balance of this fund shall not exceed one-fourth of the amount budgeted for current expenses for the fiscal year.

As required by provisions of the bond agreements, the beginning and end of the year balances of the required funds are as follows:

	June 30, 2020	June 30, 2019
Revenue	\$ 714,743	\$ 554,433
Operation and maintenance	236,221	226,531
Short-lived asset maintenance	63,756	46,368

Principal and interest payments for these revenue bonds as a percentage of pledged revenue totaled 11% for the year.

NOTE F - NOTES PAYABLE

Direct borrowings and direct placement debt

Metropolitan Lynchburg-Moore County, Tennessee (the Primary Government) has borrowed under the State's revolving loan program for the Department's construction projects. The principal and interest payments required under the terms of the loans, which are secured by the Department's revenues and have stated interest rates of 2.95% and 0%, respectively, are as follows:

	DWF 00-026		CWO 10-259
	Principal	<u>Interest</u>	Principal
2021	\$ 52,893	\$ 6,555	\$ 65,628
2022	54,475	4,973	65,628
2023	56,104	3,344	65,628
2024	57,868	1,580	65,628
2025	22,185	146	65,628
2026-2030	Ę	÷	328,140
2031-2035	-	9	328,140
2036			38,166
Total	\$ 243,525	\$ 16,598	\$ 1,022,586

Principal and interest payments as a percentage of pledged revenue totaled 5% for the year for these loans. Should the Department fail to remit monthly payments in accordance with the terms of the agreement, the Metropolitan Government has consented to the withholding and application of State-Shared Taxes.

The Department has also borrowed \$ 211,534 to purchase five vehicles. The obligation requires payments over five years at interest rates of 4.14% and 5.39%. Remaining principal and interest payments as of June 30, 2020, are as follows:

METROPOLITAN LYNCHBURG - MOORE COUNTY WATER AND SEWER DEPARTMENT

June 30, 2020

NOTE F - NOTES PAYABLE (Continued)

	<u>Principal</u>	<u>Interest</u>
2021	\$ 26,098	\$ 4,599
2022	40,385	5,770
2023	42,222	3,933
2024	44,144	2,011
	\$ 152,849	\$ 16,313

In the event of default, Ally Financial is recorded as lienholder.

Notes payable activity for the year ended June 30, 2020, is as follows:

Balance			Balance
June 30, 2019	<u>Draws</u>	Repayments	June 30, 2020
\$1,382,103	\$ 211,534	\$174,677	\$1,418,960

The Department incurred \$174,452 in interest costs from revenue bonds and notes payable during the current year and had no unused lines of credit at June 30, 2020.

NOTE G - RISK MANAGEMENT

The Department is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets, errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Department obtains insurance coverage covering the above risks of loss through a public risk entity pool, Tennessee Risk Management Trust (TRMT), which is a public entity risk pool created under the auspices of the Tennessee Governmental Tort Liability Act to provide governmental insurance coverage. The creation of the TRMT provides for it to be self-sustaining through member premiums.

Settled claims in the past three years have not exceeded the coverage.

NOTE H - INCOME TAXES

As a governmental entity, the Department is exempt from federal, state and local income taxes.

NOTE I - SIGNIFICANT CONCENTRATIONS

The Department operates principally to distribute water to residents of Moore County, Tennessee. The Department grants credit to its customers, which at June 30, 2020, totaled \$246,872. Deposits from these customers, totaling \$27,789 at June 30, 2020, are held as security for these accounts receivable.

Water and sewer revenues from Jack Daniel Distillery account for approximately thirty-five percent of the Department's total water and sewer revenues.

METROPOLITAN LYNCHBURG - MOORE COUNTY WATER AND SEWER DEPARTMENT

June 30, 2020

NOTE J - ENVIRONMENTAL CONTINGENCY

The Department's facilities and operations are subject to a wide range of environmental protection laws related to the use and disposal of hazardous materials. As a result, there is the possibility that environmental conditions may arise which would require the Department to incur cleanup costs. As in prior years, management continues its efforts to comply, and to determine compliance, with all applicable environmental protection laws and does not believe such costs, if any, would materially affect the Department's financial position or its future cash flows.

NOTE K - DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS

The Department offers its employees the following defined contribution plans: State of Tennessee Deferred Compensation Plan I for Participating Governmental Employers-457(b)and State of Tennessee Deferred Compensation Plan II for Participating Governmental Employers-401(k)-(Plans). The Plans are administered by the Treasurer, State of Tennessee. Full -time employees (30 or more hours of service per week) are immediately eligible to make elective deferrals under the Plans. All contributions after February 2018 have been made to Plan II. The Department contributes up to 2.38 percent of employee compensation as matching contributions. Matching contributions related to distributed permissible withdrawals will be placed in a forfeiture account which will be used first to reduce the employers' matching contributions plan and then to offset Plan expenses. The election provisions of the Plans may be amended, so long as the amendment is not inconsistent with the Plan, the Code, Tennessee law, or other applicable law and is approved by the Chair of the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System. The Chair may amend the Plans on behalf of all Employers for changes in the Code, the regulations thereunder, Tennessee law, revenue rulings, other statements published by the IRS, and for other reasons that are deemed at the Chair's sole discretion to be in the interest of the Plans. The Department recognized \$16,842 in retirement plan expense for the year. Forfeitures for the current year were \$514.

NOTE L - PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

Payroll-related accounts were adjusted in the current year to correct errors in insurance withholdings and payments arising in prior years. The effect of the correction was to increase the beginning net position by \$8,984. Had the correction been made in the prior year, the effect would have been an increase in the change in net position of approximately \$4,000.

NOTE M - COMMITMENT

Subsequent to June 30, 2020, an agreement between The Metropolitan Government of Lynchburg, Moore County and Government Capital Corporation was finalized to provide \$765,997 to finance a lease-purchase of water meters and AMI. The agreement requires annual payments commencing July 8, 2021, of \$90,242 through July 8, 2030, at a stated interest rate of 3.637 percent.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

METROPOLITAN LYNCHBURG - MOORE COUNTY WATER AND SEWER DEPARTMENT

Year ended June 30, 2020

Federal Grantor/ Pass-Through Grantor	CFDA	Contract			
r ass-1 mough Grantor	Number	Number	Exp	penditures	
FEDERAL AWARDS U. S. Department of Agriculture: Water and Waste Disposal Systems for Rural Communities	10.760	: -	\$	55,329	
U. S. Department of Homeland Security: Passed through State Department of Military: Disaster Grants-Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared Disasters)	97.036	63407-3314		6,631	
	TE FINANCIA	ERAL AWARDS L ASSISTANCE TATE AWARDS	\$	61,960	

Note 1: Loans Outstanding: At June 30, 2020, there were outstanding balances of \$243,525 and \$1,022,586 on loans obtained through the State Revolving Loan Fund. Repayments during the current fiscal year totaled \$51,240 and \$64,752 respectively.

At June 30, 2020, amounts owed to the U. S. D. A. totaled \$1,801,843. Repayments for the year totaled \$3,413,045.

Note 2: The schedule is presented using the accrual basis of accounting.

SCHEDULE OF INCOME - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

METROPOLITAN LYNCHBURG - MOORE COUNTY WATER AND SEWER DEPARTMENT

Year ended June 30, 2020

					F	Favorable
		Budget		Actual	(U	nfavorable)
REVENUES						
Water sales	\$	2.200.500	\$	2,104,875	\$	(95,625)
Sewer service charges		387,544		401,509		13,965
Penalties		18,294		17,577		(717)
Pre-treatment income		9,952		9,952		0
Water reconnect fees		500				(500)
Credit card revenue		6,300		5,962		(338)
Miscellaneous		5,500		3,934		(1,566)
Service fees		19,000		20,242		1,242
Serveline insurance		3,000		7,386		4,386
Sanitation revenue		6,300		7,200		900
Tap connection fees		30,000		26,676		(3,324)
Uncollectible accounts		(5,000)		(4,534)		466
TOTAL REVENUES		2,681,890	_	2,600,779		(81,111)
OPERATING EXPENSES						
General and administrative		440,544		423,906		16,638
Water operating expenses		1,280,460		1,158,907		121,553
Sewer operating expenses		305,288		473,761		(168,473)
Utility maintenance expenses		415,932		357,686		58,246
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES	_	2,442,224	_	2,414,260		27,964
Operating income		239,666		186,519		(53,147)
NONOPERATING INCOME (EXPENSE)						
Interest income		800		1,834		1,034
Interest expense		(217,000)		(174,452)		42,548
Bond issuance costs		æn:		(65,245)		(65,245)
Gain on retirement of fixed assets		*:		11,718		11,718
Total nonoperating income (expense), net	_	(216,200)		(226,145)	-	(9,945)
NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE					20	
CONTRIBUTIONS, GRANTS, AND TRANSFERS		23,466		(39,626)		(63,092)
Γap fees in excess of cost		963		18,324		18,324
Contributions from developers		30.		2,307		2,307
Grants		<u> </u>	-	61,960	ş ı.	61,960
	\$	23,466	\$	42,965	\$	19,499

SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

METROPOLITAN LYNCHBURG - MOORE COUNTY WATER AND SEWER DEPARTMENT

Year ended June 30, 2020

Salaries and wages S 199,354 \$ 199	Fr Actual (Un		Budget		
Payroll taxes and employee benefits					AL AND ADMINISTRATIVE:
Payroll taxes and employee benefits	199,354 \$	\$	209,332	S	es and wages
Telephone	,	·			
Utilities 5,750 4,614 Depreciation and amortization 31,000 37,810 Insurance 7,500 8,565 Uniforms 3,500 1,260 Postage 14,000 15,942 Advertising 1,200 1,101 Office equipment service contract 2,500 1,304 Legal and professional fees 24,000 25,621 Education 4,000 3,736 Maintenance and repair 1,000 1,880 Fuel 5,000 4,225 Engineering fee 2,000 700 Supplies 15,000 6,519 Technical support 15,500 25,871 General services 11,000 2,570 Vehicle maintenance and repair 2,500 1,416 Dues and subscriptions 3,000 2,775 Miscellaneous supplies and expenses 1,500 5,111 Credit card expense 5,000 5,031 Payroll taxes and employee benefits 57,810 58,832 T					hone
Insurance					ies
Uniforms	37,810		31,000		eciation and amortization
Postage	8,565		7,500		
Advertising 1,200 1,101 Office equipment service contract 2,500 1,304 Legal and professional fees 24,000 25,621 Education 4,000 3,736 Maintenance and repair 1,000 1,880 Fuel 5,000 4,255 Engineering fee 2,000 700 Supplies 15,000 6,519 Technical support 15,500 25,871 General services 11,000 2,570 Vehicle maintenance and repair 2,500 1,416 Dues and subscriptions 3,000 2,775 Miscellaneous supplies and expenses 1,500 5,111 Credit card expense 5,000 7,278 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE 440,544 423,906 WATER: Plant operations: Salaries and wages 227,210 226,699 Payroll taxes and employee benefits 57,810 8,832 Felephone 13,300 3,376 Electricity 120,000 102,421 Treated water 55,000 56,058 Education 3,000 1,299 Advertising 400 335 Chemicals 150,000 100,730 Depreciation 433,790 423,532 Maintenance and repair 23,000 12,306 Raw water 2,000 1,035 Postage 300 62 Uniforms 2,600 5,181 Insurance 17,000 16,723 Engineering fee 4,000 875 Electricity 5,000 5,775 Dues and subscriptions 2,000 4,111 Miscellaneous supplies 5,000 5,775 Dues and subscriptions 2,000 24,801 Mintenance and repair 5,000 4,111 Miscellaneous supplies 5,000 2,4801 Mintenance and repair 5,000 4,201 Mintenance and repair 5,000 2,933 Tap connection and construction expense 17,000 26,392 State permit fees 500 5,500					
Office equipment service contract 2,500 1,304 Legal and professional fees 24,000 25,621 Education 4,000 3,736 Maintenance and repair 1,000 1,880 Fuel 5,000 4,255 Engineering fee 2,000 700 Supplies 15,000 6,519 Technical support 15,500 25,871 General services 11,000 2,570 Vehicle maintenance and repair 2,500 1,416 Dues and subscriptions 3,000 2,775 Miscellaneous supplies and expenses 1,500 5,111 Credit card expense 5,000 7,278 MATER: GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE 440,544 423,906 WATER: Balance sand expenses 2,500 5,111 Salaries and wages 227,210 226,699 Payroll taxes and employee benefits 57,810 58,832 Telephone 3,300 3,376 Electricity 120,000 10,2421 Tre	15,942				
Legal and professional fees 24,000 25,621 Education 4,000 3,736 Maintenance and repair 1,000 1,880 Fuel 5,000 4,255 Engineering fee 2,000 700 Supplies 15,000 6,519 Technical support 15,500 25,871 General services 11,000 2,570 Vehicle maintenance and repair 2,500 1,416 Dues and subscriptions 3,000 2,775 Miscellaneous supplies and expenses 1,500 5,111 Credit card expense 5,000 7,278 MATER: 440,544 423,906 WATER: 440,544 423,906 WATER: 227,210 226,699 Payroll taxes and employee benefits 57,810 58,832 Telephone 3,300 3,376 Electricity 120,000 102,421 Treated water 55,000 56,058 Education 3,000 1,299 Advertising					
Education	1,304				
Maintenance and repair 1,000 1,880 Fuel 5,000 4,255 Engineering fee 2,000 700 Supplies 15,000 6,519 Technical support 15,500 25,871 General services 11,000 2,570 Vehicle maintenance and repair 2,500 1,416 Dues and subscriptions 3,000 2,775 Miscellaneous supplies and expenses 1,500 5,111 Credit card expense 5,000 7,278 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE 440,544 423,906 WATER: 440,544 423,906 WATER: 3,000 2,775 Balaries and wages 227,210 226,699 Payroll taxes and employee benefits 57,810 58,832 Telephone 3,300 3,376 Electricity 120,000 102,421 Treated water 55,000 56,058 Education 3,000 1,299 Advertising 400 335 Chemicals <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>					
Fuel	3,736		4,000		
Engineering fee 2,000 700 Supplies 15,000 6,519 Technical support 15,500 25,871 General services 11,000 2,570 Vehicle maintenance and repair 2,500 1,416 Dues and subscriptions 3,000 2,775 Miscellaneous supplies and expenses 1,500 5,111 Credit card expense 5,000 7,278 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE 440,544 423,906 WATER: WATER: Valuation operations: Salaries and wages 227,210 226,699 Payroll taxes and employee benefits 57,810 58,832 Telephone 3,300 3,376 Electricity 120,000 102,421 Treated water 55,000 56,058 Education 3,000 1,299 Advertising 400 335 Chemicals 150,000 100,730 Depreciation 433,790 423,532 Maintenance and repair 23,000 12,306 Raw water 2,000 1,035 Postage 300 62 Uniforms 2,600 5,181 Insurance 17,000 16,723 Engineering fee 4,000 875 Lab expense 2,050 2,013 State fees 5,000 4,111 Miscellaneous supplies 5,000 471 Distribution: Electricity 51,000 40,320 Meters and parts 25,000 24,801 Maintenance and repair 25,000 29,833 Tap connection and construction expense 17,000 20,392 State permit fees 500 5,500 Engineering fee 500 5,500	1,880				enance and repair
Supplies 15,000 6,519 Technical support 15,500 25,871 General services 11,000 2,570 Vehicle maintenance and repair 2,500 1,416 Dues and subscriptions 3,000 2,775 Miscellaneous supplies and expenses 1,500 5,111 Credit card expense 5,000 7,278 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE 440,544 423,906 VATER: **** ***** Payroll taxes and wages 227,210 226,699 Payroll taxes and employee benefits 57,810 58,832 Telephone 3,300 3,376 Electricity 120,000 10,2421 Treated water 55,000 56,058 Education 3,000 1,299 Advertising 400 335 Chemicals 150,000 100,730 Depreciation 433,790 423,532 Maintenance and repair 23,000 12,306 Raw water 2,000 1,035	4,255		5,000		
Technical support 15,500 25,871 General services 11,000 2,570 Vehicle maintenance and repair 2,500 1,416 Dues and subscriptions 3,000 2,775 Miscellaneous supplies and expenses 1,500 5,111 Credit card expense 5,000 7,278 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE 440,544 423,906 VATER: 440,544 423,906 VATER: 226,699 27,210 Payroll taxes and employee benefits 57,810 58,832 Telephone 3,300 3,376 Electricity 120,000 102,421 Treated water 55,000 56,058 Education 3,000 1,299 Advertising 400 335 Chemicals 150,000 100,730 Depreciation 433,790 423,532 Maintenance and repair 23,000 12,306 Raw water 2,000 1,035 Postage 300 62 Uniforms					
General services 11,000 2,570 Vehicle maintenance and repair 2,500 1,416 Dues and subscriptions 3,000 2,775 Miscellaneous supplies and expenses 1,500 5,111 Credit card expense 5,000 7,278 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE 440,544 423,906 VATER: **** **** Payroll taxes and employee benefits 57,810 58,832 Telephone 3,300 3,376 Electricity 120,000 102,421 Treated water 55,000 56,058 Education 3,000 1,299 Advertising 400 335 Chemicals 150,000 100,730 Depreciation 433,790 423,532 Maintenance and repair 23,000 1,035 Postage 300 62 Uniforms 2,600 5,181 Insurance 17,000 16,723 Engineering fee 4,000 875 Labe expense <t< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t<>					
Vehicle maintenance and repair 2,500 1,416 Dues and subscriptions 3,000 2,775 Miscellaneous supplies and expenses 1,500 5,111 Credit card expense 5,000 7,278 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE 440,544 423,906 WATER: 227,210 226,699 Payroll taxes and employee benefits 57,810 58,832 Telephone 3,300 3,376 Electricity 120,000 102,421 Treated water 55,000 56,058 Education 3,000 1,299 Advertising 400 335 Chemicals 150,000 100,730 Depreciation 433,790 423,532 Maintenance and repair 23,000 12,306 Raw water 2,000 1,035 Postage 300 62 Uniforms 2,600 5,181 Insurance 17,000 16,723 Engineering fee 4,000 875 Lab expense					
Dues and subscriptions 3,000 2,775 Miscellaneous supplies and expenses 1,500 5,111 Credit card expense 5,000 7,278 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE 440,544 423,906 VATER: ***Balaric sand wages 227,210 226,699 Payroll taxes and employee benefits 57,810 58,832 Telephone 3,300 3,376 Electricity 120,000 102,421 Treated water 55,000 56,058 Education 3,000 1,299 Advertising 400 335 Chemicals 150,000 100,730 Depreciation 433,790 423,532 Maintenance and repair 2,000 1,035 Raw water 2,000 1,035 Postage 300 62 Uniforms 2,600 5,181 Insurance 17,000 16,723 Engineering fee 4,000 875 Lab expense 2,050 2,013 State fees<	2,570				
Miscellaneous supplies and expenses 1,500 5,000 5,111 7,278 Credit card expense 440,544 423,906 VATER: 440,544 423,906 VATER: 100,000 226,699 Payroll taxes and employee benefits 57,810 58,832 Telephone 3,300 3,376 Electricity 120,000 102,421 Treated water 55,000 56,058 Education 3,000 1,299 Advertising 400 335 Chemicals 150,000 100,730 Depreciation 433,790 423,532 Maintenance and repair 23,000 12,306 Raw water 2,000 1,035 Postage 300 62 Uniforms 2,600 5,181 Insurance 17,000 16,723 Engineering fee 4,000 875 Lab expense 2,050 2,013 State fees 5,000 4,111 Miscellaneous supplies 5,000 4,71 Dues and subscriptions 1,113,460 1,021,834	1,416		2,500		
Credit card expense 5,000 7,278 WATER: 440,544 423,906 Plant operations: 227,210 226,699 Payroll taxes and employee benefits 57,810 58,832 Telephone 3,300 3,376 Electricity 120,000 102,421 Treated water 55,000 56,058 Education 3,000 1,299 Advertising 400 335 Chemicals 150,000 100,730 Depreciation 433,790 423,532 Maintenance and repair 23,000 12,306 Raw water 2,000 1,035 Postage 300 62 Uniforms 2,600 5,181 Insurance 17,000 16,723 Engineering fee 4,000 875 Lab expense 2,050 2,013 State fees 5,000 4,111 Miscellaneous supplies 5,000 4,71 Dues and subscriptions 1,113,460 1,021,834	2,775		3,000		and subscriptions
Credit card expense 5,000 7,278 VATER: 440,544 423,906 VATER: 227,210 226,699 Plant operations: 57,810 58,832 Payroll taxes and employee benefits 57,810 58,832 Telephone 3,300 3,376 Electricity 120,000 102,421 Treated water 55,000 56,058 Education 3,000 1,299 Advertising 400 335 Chemicals 150,000 100,730 Depreciation 433,790 423,532 Maintenance and repair 2,000 1,035 Postage 300 62 Uniforms 2,600 5,181 Insurance 17,000 16,723 Engineering fee 4,000 875 Lab expense 2,050 2,013 State fees 5,000 4,111 Miscellaneous supplies 5,000 4,71 Dues and subscriptions 1,13,460 1,021,834 <			1,500		ellaneous supplies and expenses
ATER: lant operations: Salaries and wages 227,210 226,699 Payroll taxes and employee benefits 57,810 58,832 Telephone 3,300 3,376 Electricity 120,000 102,421 Treated water 55,000 56,058 Education 3,000 1,299 Advertising 400 335 Chemicals 150,000 100,730 Depreciation 433,790 423,532 Maintenance and repair 23,000 12,306 Raw water 2,000 10,335 Postage 300 62 Uniforms 2,600 5,181 Insurance 17,000 16,723 Engineering fee 4,000 875 Lab expense 2,050 2,013 State fees 5,000 4,111 Miscellaneous supplies 5,000 5,775 Dues and subscriptions 2,000 471 Electricity 51,000 40,320 Meters and parts 25,000 24,801 Maintenance and repair 64,000 29,833 Tap connection and construction expense 17,000 26,392 State permit fees 500 5,500 Engineering fee 500 5,500 Engineering fee 500 5,500 Engineering fee 500 Engineering fee					
Salaries and wages 227,210 226,699 Payroll taxes and employee benefits 57,810 58,832 Telephone 3,300 3,376 Electricity 120,000 102,421 Treated water 55,000 56,058 Education 3,000 1,299 Advertising 400 335 Chemicals 150,000 100,730 Depreciation 433,790 423,532 Maintenance and repair 23,000 12,306 Raw water 2,000 1,035 Postage 300 62 Uniforms 2,600 5,181 Insurance 17,000 16,723 Engineering fee 4,000 875 Lab expense 2,050 2,013 State fees 5,000 4,111 Miscellaneous supplies 5,000 5,775 Dues and subscriptions 2,000 471 Miscellaneous supplies 5,000 4,111 Miscellaneous supplies 5,000 4,71 Miscellaneous and repair 51,000 40,320 Meters and parts 25,000 24,801 Maintenance and repair 64,000 29,833 Tap connection and construction expense 17,000 26,392 State permit fees 500 5,500 Engineering fee 500 5,500	423,906	-	440,544		GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Salaries and wages 227,210 226,699 Payroll taxes and employee benefits 57,810 58,832 Telephone 3,300 3,376 Electricity 120,000 102,421 Treated water 55,000 56,058 Education 3,000 1,299 Advertising 400 335 Chemicals 150,000 100,730 Depreciation 433,790 423,532 Maintenance and repair 23,000 12,306 Raw water 2,000 1,035 Postage 300 62 Uniforms 2,600 5,181 Insurance 17,000 16,723 Engineering fee 4,000 875 Lab expense 2,050 2,013 State fees 5,000 5,775 Dues and subscriptions 2,000 471 Instribution: Electricity 51,000 40,320 Meters and parts 25,000 24,801 Maintenance and repair 64,000 <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>					
Payroll taxes and employee benefits 57,810 58,832 Telephone 3,300 3,376 Electricity 120,000 102,421 Treated water 55,000 56,058 Education 3,000 1,299 Advertising 400 335 Chemicals 150,000 100,730 Depreciation 433,790 423,532 Maintenance and repair 23,000 12,306 Raw water 2,000 1,035 Postage 300 62 Uniforms 2,600 5,181 Insurance 17,000 16,723 Engineering fee 4,000 875 Lab expense 2,050 2,013 State fees 5,000 4,111 Miscellaneous supplies 5,000 5,775 Dues and subscriptions 2,000 471 Vistribution: 2,000 40,320 Electricity 51,000 40,320 Meters and parts 25,000 24,801 <					
Telephone 3,300 3,376 Electricity 120,000 102,421 Treated water 55,000 56,058 Education 3,000 1,299 Advertising 400 335 Chemicals 150,000 100,730 Depreciation 433,790 423,532 Maintenance and repair 23,000 12,306 Raw water 2,000 1,035 Postage 300 62 Uniforms 2,600 5,181 Insurance 17,000 16,723 Engineering fee 4,000 875 Lab expense 2,050 2,013 State fees 5,000 4,111 Miscellaneous supplies 5,000 5,775 Dues and subscriptions 2,000 471 istribution: 113,460 1,021,834 istribution: 25,000 24,801 Meters and parts 25,000 24,801 Maintenance and repair 64,000 29,833	226,699				
Electricity 120,000 102,421 Treated water 55,000 56,058 Education 3,000 1,299 Advertising 400 335 Chemicals 150,000 100,730 Depreciation 433,790 423,532 Maintenance and repair 23,000 12,306 Raw water 2,000 1,035 Postage 300 62 Uniforms 2,600 5,181 Insurance 17,000 16,723 Engineering fee 4,000 875 Lab expense 2,050 2,013 State fees 5,000 4,111 Miscellaneous supplies 5,000 471 Dues and subscriptions 2,000 471 Distribution: 2 11,13,460 1,021,834 Distribution: Electricity 51,000 40,320 Meters and parts 25,000 24,801 Maintenance and repair 64,000 29,833 Tap connection and construction ex	58,832		57,810		
Treated water 55,000 56,058 Education 3,000 1,299 Advertising 400 335 Chemicals 150,000 100,730 Depreciation 433,790 423,532 Maintenance and repair 23,000 12,306 Raw water 2,000 1,035 Postage 300 62 Uniforms 2,600 5,181 Insurance 17,000 16,723 Engineering fee 4,000 875 Lab expense 2,050 2,013 State fees 5,000 4,111 Miscellaneous supplies 5,000 4,711 Dues and subscriptions 2,000 471 Vistribution: 11,13,460 1,021,834 Vistribution: 2 25,000 24,801 Maintenance and repair 64,000 29,833 Tap connection and construction expense 17,000 26,392 State permit fees 500 - Engineering fee 500			3,300		
Education 3,000 1,299 Advertising 400 335 Chemicals 150,000 100,730 Depreciation 433,790 423,532 Maintenance and repair 23,000 12,306 Raw water 2,000 1,035 Postage 300 62 Uniforms 2,600 5,181 Insurance 17,000 16,723 Engineering fee 4,000 875 Lab expense 2,050 2,013 State fees 5,000 4,111 Miscellaneous supplies 5,000 471 Dues and subscriptions 2,000 471 Distribution: 2,000 471 Electricity 51,000 40,320 Meters and parts 25,000 24,801 Maintenance and repair 64,000 29,833 Tap connection and construction expense 17,000 26,392 State permit fees 500 - Engineering fee 500 5,500	102,421		120,000		
Advertising 400 335 Chemicals 150,000 100,730 Depreciation 433,790 423,532 Maintenance and repair 23,000 12,306 Raw water 2,000 1,035 Postage 300 62 Uniforms 2,600 5,181 Insurance 17,000 16,723 Engineering fee 4,000 875 Lab expense 2,050 2,013 State fees 5,000 4,111 Miscellaneous supplies 5,000 5,775 Dues and subscriptions 2,000 471 Distribution: 1113,460 1,021,834 Electricity 51,000 40,320 Meters and parts 25,000 24,801 Maintenance and repair 64,000 29,833 Tap connection and construction expense 17,000 26,392 State permit fees 500 - Engineering fee 500 5,500			55,000		
Chemicals 150,000 100,730 Depreciation 433,790 423,532 Maintenance and repair 23,000 12,306 Raw water 2,000 1,035 Postage 300 62 Uniforms 2,600 5,181 Insurance 17,000 16,723 Engineering fee 4,000 875 Lab expense 2,050 2,013 State fees 5,000 4,111 Miscellaneous supplies 5,000 5,775 Dues and subscriptions 2,000 471 Distribution: 1,113,460 1,021,834 Distribution: 25,000 24,801 Meters and parts 25,000 24,801 Maintenance and repair 64,000 29,833 Tap connection and construction expense 17,000 26,392 State permit fees 500 5,500	1,299		3,000		
Depreciation 433,790 423,532 Maintenance and repair 23,000 12,306 Raw water 2,000 1,035 Postage 300 62 Uniforms 2,600 5,181 Insurance 17,000 16,723 Engineering fee 4,000 875 Lab expense 2,050 2,013 State fees 5,000 4,111 Miscellaneous supplies 5,000 5,775 Dues and subscriptions 2,000 471 Distribution: 2,000 471 Electricity 51,000 40,320 Meters and parts 25,000 24,801 Maintenance and repair 64,000 29,833 Tap connection and construction expense 17,000 26,392 State permit fees 500 - Engineering fee 500 5,500	335		400		tising
Maintenance and repair 23,000 12,306 Raw water 2,000 1,035 Postage 300 62 Uniforms 2,600 5,181 Insurance 17,000 16,723 Engineering fee 4,000 875 Lab expense 2,050 2,013 State fees 5,000 4,111 Miscellaneous supplies 5,000 5,775 Dues and subscriptions 2,000 471 Distribution: 1,113,460 1,021,834 Electricity 51,000 40,320 Meters and parts 25,000 24,801 Maintenance and repair 64,000 29,833 Tap connection and construction expense 17,000 26,392 State permit fees 500 - Engineering fee 500 5,500	100,730		150,000		
Raw water 2,000 1,035 Postage 300 62 Uniforms 2,600 5,181 Insurance 17,000 16,723 Engineering fee 4,000 875 Lab expense 2,050 2,013 State fees 5,000 4,111 Miscellaneous supplies 5,000 5,775 Dues and subscriptions 2,000 471 Distribution: 1,113,460 1,021,834 Distribution: 51,000 40,320 Meters and parts 25,000 24,801 Maintenance and repair 64,000 29,833 Tap connection and construction expense 17,000 26,392 State permit fees 500 - Engineering fee 500 5,500	423,532		433,790		
Raw water 2,000 1,035 Postage 300 62 Uniforms 2,600 5,181 Insurance 17,000 16,723 Engineering fee 4,000 875 Lab expense 2,050 2,013 State fees 5,000 4,111 Miscellaneous supplies 5,000 5,775 Dues and subscriptions 2,000 471 Distribution: 1,113,460 1,021,834 Distribution: 51,000 40,320 Meters and parts 25,000 24,801 Maintenance and repair 64,000 29,833 Tap connection and construction expense 17,000 26,392 State permit fees 500 - Engineering fee 500 5,500	12,306		23,000		enance and repair
Postage 300 62 Uniforms 2,600 5,181 Insurance 17,000 16,723 Engineering fee 4,000 875 Lab expense 2,050 2,013 State fees 5,000 4,111 Miscellaneous supplies 5,000 5,775 Dues and subscriptions 2,000 471 Distribution: 1,113,460 1,021,834 Electricity 51,000 40,320 Meters and parts 25,000 24,801 Maintenance and repair 64,000 29,833 Tap connection and construction expense 17,000 26,392 State permit fees 500 - Engineering fee 500 5,500	1,035		2,000		vater
Insurance 17,000 16,723 Engineering fee 4,000 875 Lab expense 2,050 2,013 State fees 5,000 4,111 Miscellaneous supplies 5,000 5,775 Dues and subscriptions 2,000 471 1,113,460 1,021,834 Distribution: Electricity 51,000 40,320 Meters and parts 25,000 24,801 Maintenance and repair 64,000 29,833 Tap connection and construction expense 17,000 26,392 State permit fees 500 - Engineering fee 500 5,500					ge
Engineering fee 4,000 875 Lab expense 2,050 2,013 State fees 5,000 4,111 Miscellaneous supplies 5,000 5,775 Dues and subscriptions 2,000 471 1,113,460 1,021,834 Distribution: 51,000 40,320 Meters and parts 25,000 24,801 Maintenance and repair 64,000 29,833 Tap connection and construction expense 17,000 26,392 State permit fees 500 - Engineering fee 500 5,500	5,181		2,600		rms
Engineering fee 4,000 875 Lab expense 2,050 2,013 State fees 5,000 4,111 Miscellaneous supplies 5,000 5,775 Dues and subscriptions 2,000 471 Distribution: 1,113,460 1,021,834 Electricity 51,000 40,320 Meters and parts 25,000 24,801 Maintenance and repair 64,000 29,833 Tap connection and construction expense 17,000 26,392 State permit fees 500 - Engineering fee 500 5,500	16,723		17,000		nce
State fees 5,000 4,111 Miscellaneous supplies 5,000 5,775 Dues and subscriptions 2,000 471 1,113,460 1,021,834 Distribution: 51,000 40,320 Meters and parts 25,000 24,801 Maintenance and repair 64,000 29,833 Tap connection and construction expense 17,000 26,392 State permit fees 500 - Engineering fee 500 5,500					eering fee
Miscellaneous supplies 5,000 5,775 Dues and subscriptions 2,000 471 1,113,460 1,021,834 Distribution: 51,000 40,320 Meters and parts 25,000 24,801 Maintenance and repair 64,000 29,833 Tap connection and construction expense 17,000 26,392 State permit fees 500 - Engineering fee 500 5,500	2,013				xpense
Miscellaneous supplies 5,000 5,775 Dues and subscriptions 2,000 471 1,113,460 1,021,834 Distribution: 51,000 40,320 Meters and parts 25,000 24,801 Maintenance and repair 64,000 29,833 Tap connection and construction expense 17,000 26,392 State permit fees 500 - Engineering fee 500 5,500					fees
Dues and subscriptions 2,000 471 1,113,460 1,021,834 Distribution: 51,000 40,320 Electricity 51,000 24,801 Maintenance and parts 64,000 29,833 Tap connection and construction expense 17,000 26,392 State permit fees 500 - Engineering fee 500 5,500			5,000		llaneous supplies
Distribution: 51,000 40,320 Electricity 51,000 24,801 Meters and parts 25,000 24,801 Maintenance and repair 64,000 29,833 Tap connection and construction expense 17,000 26,392 State permit fees 500 - Engineering fee 500 5,500					and subscriptions
Distribution: 51,000 40,320 Electricity 51,000 24,801 Meters and parts 25,000 24,801 Maintenance and repair 64,000 29,833 Tap connection and construction expense 17,000 26,392 State permit fees 500 - Engineering fee 500 5,500	1,021,834		1,113,460		•
Meters and parts 25,000 24,801 Maintenance and repair 64,000 29,833 Tap connection and construction expense 17,000 26,392 State permit fees 500 - Engineering fee 500 5,500	, ,		, ,		tion:
Meters and parts 25,000 24,801 Maintenance and repair 64,000 29,833 Tap connection and construction expense 17,000 26,392 State permit fees 500 - Engineering fee 500 5,500	40.320		51,000		icity
Maintenance and repair64,00029,833Tap connection and construction expense17,00026,392State permit fees500-Engineering fee5005,500					
Tap connection and construction expense17,00026,392State permit fees500-Engineering fee5005,500					
State permit fees 500 - 5,500 Engineering fee 500 5,500					
Engineering fee 500 5,500					
	5,500				
Miscellaneous supplies 3,000 3,589			3,000		
Lab fees 6,000 6,638					
167,000 137,073		-			
WATER OPERATING EXPENSES 1,280,460 1,158,907		=			WATER OPERATING EXPENSES

See independent auditor's report.

SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)

METROPOLITAN LYNCHBURG - MOORE COUNTY WATER AND SEWER DEPARTMENT

Year ended June 30, 2020

	Budget	Actual	Favorable (Unfavorable)
SEWER:			
Plant Operations:			
Salaries and wages	62,000	52,665	9,335
Payroll taxes and employee benefits	10,163	10,821	(658)
Telephone	1,000	843	157
Electricity	32,000	31,401	599
Education	6,000	1,031	4,969
Maintenance and repair	11,000	2,843	8,157
Vehicle maintenance and repair	₫	(; =	₹.
Insurance	7,000	6,526	474
Postage	125	87	38
Miscellaneous supplies	4,250	5,414	(1,164)
Fuel	200	64	136
State fees	3,500	3,735	(235)
	3,500	#	3,500
Pre-treatment expense Uniforms	1,500	1,173	327
	4,200	6,532	(2,332)
Lab fees	500	963	(463)
Engineering fees	127,000	120,144	6,856
Depreciation	127,000	126	(126)
Inventory expense	650	481	169
Dues and subscriptions	6,000	5,955	45
Chemicals	280,588	250,804	29,784
Collection:			2.425
Electricity	20,000	16,565	3,435
Tap connections	500	284	216
Engineering fees	(5)	203,462	(203,462)
Miscellaneous supplies	100	14	86
Maintenance and repair	4,100	2,632	1,468
•	24,700	222,957	(198,257
SEWER OPERATING EXPENSES	305,288	473,761	(168,473)
UTILITY MAINTENANCE			20.650
Salaries and wages	255,569	226,911	28,658
Payroll taxes and employee benefits	108,339	75,969	32,370
Electricity	500	481	19
Telephone	224	224	- 20
Insurance	9,000	8,972	28
Maintenance and repair	2,200	1,173	1,027
Office supplies	100	8.5	100
Education	1,000	1,057	(57
Vehicle maintenance and repair	10,000	5,967	4,033
Depreciation	10,000	22,198	(12,198
Fuel	11,000	9,505	1,495
Dues and subscriptions	500	471	29
Miscellaneous supplies	2,500	9,492	(6,992
Utility maintenance tools	1,500	1,464	36
Uniforms	3,500	5,080	(1,580
Allocable expenses		(11,278)	11,278
UTILITY MAINTENANCE EXPENSES	415,932	357,686	58,246
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES	\$ 2,442,224	\$ 2,414,260	\$ 27,964

See independent auditor's report.

SCHEDULE OF REVENUE BOND PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

METROPOLITAN LYNCHBURG - MOORE COUNTY WATER AND SEWER DEPARTMENT

Year ended June 30, 2020

Year Ending		s 2019		s 2014	Tot	
June 30,	Principal	Interest	Principal	Interest	Principal	Interest
	\$ 104,000	\$ 93,403	\$ 35,204	S 40,180	\$ 139,204	\$ 133,583
2022	105,000	91,739	36,004	39,380	141,004	131,119
2023	107,000	90,059	36,822	38,562	143,822	128,621
2024	110,000	86,849	37,660	37,724	147,660	124,573
2025	114,000	83,549	38,516	36,868	152,516	120,417
2026	117,000	80,129	39,391	35,993	156,391	116,122
2027	121,000	76,619	40,287	35,097	161,287	111,716
2028	124,000	72,988	41,203	34,181	165,203	107,169
2029	128,000	69,269	42,139	33,245	170,139	102,514
2030	132,000	65,429	43,097	32,287	175,097	97,716
2031	136,000	61,469	44,077	31,307	180,077	92,776
2032	140,000	57,388	45,079	30,305	185,079	87,693
2033	144,000	53,189	46,104	29,280	190,104	82,469
2034	148,000	48,869	47,152	28,232	195,152	77,101
2035	148,000	44,429	48,225	27,159	196,225	71,588
2036	140,000	39,988	49,321	26,063	189,321	66,051
2037	144,000	35,789	50,442	24,942	194,442	60,731
2038	148,000	31,468	51,589	23,795	199,589	55,263
2039	153,000	27,029	52,761	22,623	205,761	49,652
2040	149,000	22,439	53,961	21,423	202,961	43,862
2041	150,000	17,969	55,187	20,197	205,187	38,166
2042	154,000	13,656	56,442	18,942	210,442	32,598
2043	158,000	9,229	57,726	17,658	215,726	26,887
2044	163,000	4,686	59,038	16,346	222,038	21,032
2045			60,380	15,004	60,380	15,004
2046			61,752	13,632	61,752	13,632
2047			63,156	12,228	63,156	12,228
2048			64,592	10,792	64,592	10,792
2049			66,060	9,324	66,060	9,324
2050		()	67,563	7,821	67,563	7,821
2051			69,099	6,285	69,099	6,285
2052			70,669	4,715	70,669	4,715
2053			72,275	3,109	72,275	3,109
2054		1	73,918	1,466	73,918	1,466
2055			24,952	145	24,952	145
	\$ 3,237,000	\$ 1,277,630	\$ 1,801,843	\$ 786,310	\$ 5,038,843	\$ 2,063,940

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT BY INDIVIDUAL ISSUE METROPOLITAN LYNCHBURG - MOORE COUNTY WATER AND SEWER DEPARTMENT

June 30, 2020

									Doid and/or				
	Original			Final			Issued	•	Matured		Refunded		
Description of	Amount	Interest	Date of	Maturity	Outs	Outstanding	During		During		During	0	Outstanding
Indebtedness	of Issue	Rate	Issue	Date	///	07/01/19	Period		Period		Period		6/30/2020
Business-Type Activities OTHER LOANS PAYABLE													
, p	\$ 979,353	2.95%	03/14/00	11/05/24	\$	294,765	:I	↔	51,240	↔	i	↔	243,525
State Revolving Loan Fund	1,292,000	0.00%	12/02/10	01/15/36	1,0	1,087,338	196		64,752		<u>(i)</u>		1,022,586
Ally Bank	211,534	4.14, 5.39%	07/19/19	07/20/23		٠	211,534		58,685				152,849
					\$ 1,3	1,382,103	\$ 211,534	↔	174,677	↔	•	₩	1,418,960
BONDS PAYABLE													
Water Fund	\$ 302,000	4.875%	06/03/97	06/03/35	\$	192,174	₩.	↔	4,098	↔	188,076	↔	Ĩ
	213,000	4.75%	07/10/01	12/10/39	1	158,188	300		2,328		155,860		a.
	1,050,000	4.25%	01/24/07	01/24/45	∞	867,074	7/€		7,870		859,204		Ē
	2,000,000	4.125%	10/17/07	10/17/45	1,6	,672,485	(E)		14,683		1,657,802		ä
	558,000	4.625%	06/04/09	04/04/47	4	488,703	E		4,345		484,358		Ñ
	1,436,000	2.25%	10/26/16	09/26/54	1,3	1,369,961	9		25,792		ŭ.		1,344,169
	485,000	2.25%	03/14/17	02/14/55	4	466,303	Si.		8,629		ij.		457,674
	264,000	1.60%	12/20/19	06/01/22		ä	264,000		55,000		<u>#</u>		209,000
	107,000	3.00%	12/20/19	06/01/23		51 6 3	107,000		9		1		107,000
	110,000	3.00%	12/20/19	06/01/24		ř	110,000		縦		1		110,000
	114,000	3.00%	12/20/19	06/01/25		¥	114,000		ì		E		114,000
	117,000	3.00%	12/20/19	06/01/26		1	117,000		ā		ă.		117,000
	121,000	3.00%	12/20/19	06/01/27		÷	121,000		*)		60		121,000
	124,000	3.00%	12/20/19	06/01/28		/0	124,000		3		ï		124,000
9	128,000	3.00%	12/20/19	06/01/29		£0	128,000		(4)		25		128,000
	552,000	3.00%	12/20/19	06/01/33		æ	552,000		**		10		552,000
	580,000	3.00%	12/20/19	06/01/37		800	580,000		0		x		580,000
	450,000	3.00%	12/20/19	06/01/40		•	450,000		4		(40)		450,000
	625,000	2.875%	12/20/19	06/01/44			625,000		1		c		625,000
					\$ 5,	5,214,888	\$ 3,292,000	↔	122,745	8	3,345,300	64	5,038,843

		A		ee Water Audit S		An	WAS v5.0 rencan Water Works Associate
- 日本			Re	porting Workshee			gh) © 2014, All Rights Reserv
1000	Click to access definition				unty Utility Department (TN0000416)	
1140	Click to add a comment	Reporting Year:	2020	7/2019 - 6/2020	1		
Please input o	e enter data in the white cells be data by grading each componen	low. Where available, metered values sho t (n/a or 1-10) using the drop-down list to t	he left of the	input cell. Hover the mouse	over the cell to obtain a descr	 Indicate your confidence in the ription of the grades 	accuracy of the
-	To select t	he correct data grading for each input		ntered as: MILLION GAL	LONS (US) PER TEAR		
		e utility meets or exceeds <u>all</u> criteria fo				Master Meter and Supply I	Error Adjustments
WATE	ER SUPPLIED				in column 'E' and 'J'	1 Offic	/alue:
		Volume from own sources: Water imported:	Allegania Albertan	The state of the s	MG/Yr MG/Yr		MG/Yr MG/Yr
		Water exported:				00	MG/Yr
		WATER SUPPLIED:		311.536	MON	Enter negative % or value Enter positive % or value f	-
		WATER OUT FEED.		011.000	WIG/TI		
AUTH	IORIZED CONSUMPTION	Billed metered:	0 8	171.308	MG/Yr		here: Manager Manager
		Billed unmetered:				butto	ns below
		Unbilled metered: Unbilled unmetered:	COLUMN TWO IS NOT THE OWNER.	1,226	MG/Yr MG/Yr	Pont: ((() ())	Value:
	Defa	ult option selected for Unbilled unn				1123% (10,1 7)	JNG/YF
		AUTHORIZED CONSUMPTION:	2	176.428			buttons to select entage of water
						рего	supplied
WATE	ER LOSSES (Water Supplie	d - Authorized Consumption)		135.108	MG/Yr		OR value
Appa	rent Losses	• •				Pont:	Value:
		Unauthorized consumption:	+ 2	0.779	MG/Yr	0.25%	MG/Yr
	Default op	tion selected for unauthorized cons	umption -	a grading of 5 is applied	but not displayed		
		Customer metering inaccuracies:			MG/Yr		MG/Yr
	Default	Systematic data handling errors: option selected for Systematic data		. The state of the	MG/Yr	0.25% ((MG/Yr
	Dolauli	Apparent Losses:	2 nanunng	1.207			
Real	Losses (Current Annual Re	al Losses or CARL)		·			
	Real Losses =	Water Losses - Apparent Losses:	7	133.901	MG/Yr		
		WATER LOSSES:		135.108	MG/Yr		
NON-	REVENUE WATER		energia .				
- \A/at-	er Losses + Unbilled Metered +	NON-REVENUE WATER:	2	140.228	MG/Yr		
	EM DATA	Onbilled Offinetered					
0.0.	Elli Para	Length of mains:	+ 2 6	233.0	miles		
	Number of acti	ve AND inactive service connections:	2 €	2,498			
		Service connection density:	7	11	conn /mile main		
Are	• • •	ated at the curbstop or property line?		Yes	(length of service li	ne, beyond the property	
		erage length of customer service line: of customer service line has been s		and a data arading coors	boundary, that is th	e responsibility of the utility)	
	Average length	Average operating pressure:					
					e 		
COST	DATA						
		nnual cost of operating water system:		\$1,939,564			
		nit cost (applied to Apparent Losses):			\$/1000 gallons (US)	Debut	al large
	variable prod	luction cost (applied to Real Losses):	2 8	\$2,000.00	\$/Million gallons Use	Customer Retail Unit Cost to value re	ai iosses
WATE	ER AUDIT DATA VALIDITY SO	ORE:					
		Wi	* YOUR SO	ORE IS: 78 out of 100 **	*		
	A weig	hted scale for the components of consum	ption and wa	ater loss is included in the ca	lculation of the Water Audit D	Data Validity Score	<u> </u>
PRIO	RITY AREAS FOR ATTENTION	55.5				2	
A COLUMN		idit accuracy can be improved by address	ina the follov	vina components:			
	Volume from own sources	and a second sec		G sampanano.			
	Jnauthorized consumption						
		re					
3; 3	Systematic data handling erro	13					

SCHEDULE OF RATES AND NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS

METROPOLITAN LYNCHBURG - MOORE COUNTY WATER AND SEWER DEPARTMENT

Year ended June 30, 2020

RESIDENTIAL RATES

\$ 7.70 service charge and \$9.65 per 1000 gallons Water

\$ 5.38 service charge and \$11.00 per 1000 gallons Sewer

COMMERCIAL RATES

\$ 7.70 service charge and \$12.28 per 1000 gallons Water

\$ 5.38 service charge and \$14.00 per 1000 gallons Sewer

INDUSTRIAL RATES

\$ 7.70 service charge and \$13.94 per 1000 gallons Water

Number of customers at June 30, 2020:

2,530 Water 310 Sewer



Certified Public Accountants and Consultants

514 Elm Street, P. O. Box 745 Shelbyville, Tennessee 37162

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Members of Utility Board Metropolitan Lynchburg - Moore County Water and Sewer Department Lynchburg, Tennessee

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Metropolitan Lynchburg - Moore County Water and Sewer Department (the Department) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Department's financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated June 23, 2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Department's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Department's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Department's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies, and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. We did identify a deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings that we consider to be a material weakness: 2020-001.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Department's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed one instance of noncompliance or other matter that is required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards* and is described in the accompanying schedule of findings as item 2020-002.

Department's Response to Finding

Winnett Association, PLLC

Metropolitan Lynchburg - Moore County Water and Sewer Department's response to the findings identified in our audit is included in the accompanying management's corrective action plan. Metropolitan Lynchburg - Moore County Water and Sewer Department's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

June 23, 2021

SCHEDULE OF DISPOSITION OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

METROPOLITAN LYNCHBURG - MOORE COUNTY WATER AND SEWER DEPARTMENT

Year ended June 30, 2020

Financial Statement Findings

Finding Number	Finding Title	Status
2019-001	Inadequate system of checks and balances (original finding # 2016-003)	Repeated
2019-002	Current expenses in excess of budgeted amounts (original finding # 2015-002)	Corrected

¹ In accordance with transition guidance

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS

METROPOLITAN LYNCHBURG - MOORE COUNTY WATER AND SEWER DEPARTMENT

June 30, 2020

Finding 2020-001 Financial reporting

Criteria: Governments must make decisions based on financial information provided by their accounting systems and be able to provide a full accounting of the handling of financial resources on behalf of others. The usefulness of financial reports depends on both the accuracy of the underlying account balances and the timeliness of the reports.

Cause and Condition: The Department does not have an adequate system of checks and balances to detect errors in recording transactions so that they can be corrected timely. This resulted in errors that were not corrected until several months after the year-end.

Effect: There is a risk that internally generated statements used for budgeting, management and board oversight, or provided to outside parties do not provide the information needed to make the best decisions or demonstrate how the Department is managing the resources entrusted to it.

Recommendation: Department personnel should reconcile the general ledger asset and liability accounts to the underlying supporting information on a monthly basis.

Finding 2020-002 Noncompliance

Criteria: Section 9-2-102, Tennessee Code Annotated provides that local governments subject to the audit requirements of the comptroller of the treasury close their official accounting records and have those records available for audit no later than two months after the close of their fiscal year.

Cause and Condition: The Department's internal control does not adequately address key controls such as periodic balancing procedures (as noted in Finding 2020-001), oversight, evaluation, and written procedures. As a result, the official accounting records were not available for audit until several months after year-end.

Effect: The local government was not in compliance with Section 9-2-102, Tennessee Code Annotated for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Recommendation: Management of the Department should address key controls to ensure that the accounting records are reliable and available for audit by August 31 each year.



Russell Sell - General Manager Brooke Fanning - Office Manager

P.O. Box 503 705 Fayetteville Highway Lynchburg, TN 37352

www.metroutilitydepartment.com 931.759.4297 Phone 931.229.4064 Fax

June 23, 2021

Management's Corrective Action Plan Re: 2019-2020 Audit Findings

Finding 2020-001 - Financial reporting

Plan:

We agree with the auditors' comments, and the following action will be taken to improve the situation. Metro Utility staff will meet weekly to discuss all projects in progress. This action will enable staff to verify all documentation needed is turned in a prompt way to assist the reconciliation of the general ledger asset and liability accounts monthly. Thusly this will also improve the checks and balances within the department.

Expected Implementation Date: June 30, 2021

Finding 2020-002 - Noncompliance

Plan:

We agree with the auditors' comments, and the following action will be taken to improve the situation. Metro Utility staff has recently gone through an accounting software change that slowed the audit process due to complications in the change. Although Metro Utilities strives to be as efficient as possible, we understand that there are always ways to improve. Management will take steps to have the general ledger asset and liability accounts reconciled monthly as noted in previous finding 2020-001. This will ensure that all accounting records will be made available for audit on August 31st of each year.

Expected Implementation Date:

June 30, 2021

Respectfully Submitted.

Russell Sells General Manager



Certified Public Accountants and Consultants

514 Elm Street, P. O. Box 745 Shelbyville, Tennessee 37162

Members of Utility Board Metropolitan Lynchburg - Moore County Water and Sewer Department Lynchburg, Tennessee

We have audited the financial statements of Metropolitan Lynchburg - Moore County Water and Sewer Department for the year ended June 30, 2020, and have issued our report thereon dated June 23, 2021. Professional standards require that we provide you with the following information related to our audit.

Our Responsibility under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards

As stated in our engagement letter dated June 17, 2020, our responsibility, as described by professional standards, is to express an opinion about whether the financial statements presented by management with your oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your responsibilities.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to you.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant accounting policies used by Metropolitan Lynchburg - Moore County Water and Sewer Department are described in Note B to the financial statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during the year ended June 30, 2020. We noted no transactions entered into by the Department during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. There are no significant transactions that have been recognized in the financial statements in a different period than when the transaction occurred.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.

Management has corrected all financial statement misstatements identified during the audit that were material, both individually, and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation letter dated June 23, 2021.

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Department's auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Members of Utility Board and management of Metropolitan Lynchburg - Moore County Water and Sewer Department and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Sincerely,

WINNETT ASSOCIATES, PLLC

Winnett Associates, PLLC

June 23, 2021